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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Present: The Claremont City Hall (Claremont Opera House) is situated
on the southeast corner of Tremont Square, center of the city's business
district, on a plot with anv§ foot frontage and 185 fo depth

Begun October 31, 1895 and dedicated June 23, 1897, it is a brownstone
and brick rectangular bu11d1ng, _two_storeys in height with a square clock
tower extending off-center on the south side and a low hip roof.

Except for the south entrance, which was bricked and the west entrance;
with glass doors, the result of converting the first floor ballroom into
City offices and Council Chamber in 1960, the exterior of “the building
today is for the most part as it was in 1897, including the New Hampshlre
Coat of Arms over the former south- 31de entrance. "

Besides these changes on the fifst floor in the interior, the stair-

cases have been painted. The Opera House on the second floor, however,

remains basically unchanged. It has been unused for some 30 years, acquiring

during that time a layer of dirt and dust. The original seats exist and
the accoustics remain superb. |

Original: From news accounts of the time, the following is known of
the building: The ground floor consistsof a broad entrance hall off which
is an assembly hall 65 feet x 63 feet and 16 feet high which seats 700, and
is also used for balls and dances. The Town offices are in the west front,
flanking the main entrance. Broad staircases on either side of the rotunda
lead to the Opera House on the second floor. Seating capacity is 661 on
the main floor of the opera house, and 321 in the gallery, a total of 982.
The stage is 26 feet deep back of the curtain and 72 feet wide. Above all,
rises a handsome tower with illuminated clock. On each floor are dressing
rooms, waiting rooms and t011et facilities, including eight dressing rooms
undet the'stage. 7 7'

The best of materials are used 1n its construction.” The foundation is
of Gteen Mountain rock, and the’ base is dressed Connecticut Rlver brownston¢
from Sprlngfleld Massachusetts. Nearly 1,000,000 Lebanon bricks are laid
in the remaining exterior. The cornersnand frieze_bcneath the copper cornig
are of Massachusetts pressed brick. L -

The floors are of biitch, the dressing and coat rooms finished in naturg
North Carolina pine and the main staircase of quartered oak. Basswood,
painted cream color, is used in the Opera House where decorations include
a proscenium arch in moulded plaster-work with decorated stereo-relief and
appropriate figures over the center. The walls in the opera hall are in

olive green and old rose, with subdued frescoing. Far overhead in the center

is the gold decorated grill with its lighting of forty-eight incandescent
burners.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecture: The

the Town Hall, begun October 3;,/1895 and dedicated June 23, 1897, was
designed by Charles_A Rich, Lamb & Rich, New York City.

A native of Beverly;Mhssachusetts (1855 1943), he graduated from
Dartmouth College in 1875.and became professionally associated with Hugh
Lamb after studying architecture and spending 1879-1880 in Europe. A noted
architectural firm, they designed besides numerous apartments. 3nd’2esidence
in‘New York Cit¥y;icodlege buildings, and Sagamore Hill, Oyster Bay, N.Y.,
home of Theodore Roosevelt, other op€ra houses including the East Orange
(N.J.) Opera House.

The contractor, Hira Beckwifh of Claremont, a builder of high local
reputation, erected a number of other public buildings in the area, and
built many impressive homes in Claremont. Although he was foremost a
contractor, he had attented the Asher Benjamin School of Design to study
architecture.

"For the Opera House, the interior finishings were furnished almost

“wholly by Freeman and 0'Neil of\glaremont, with trimmings by George H.
Stowell, scenery by Alexandex,”Bgéton, fresco by Schupboch.dnd-Zeller,  Bost

and stage carpentry by Couch, Providence, Rhode Island.

The total result

for the building:
Renaissance Revival

o1,

of the best examples in New Hampshire- of the
tyle of architecture more “typically found in larger

urban centers than Claremont. 2 -

Social /Humanitarian: Besides housing the key Town offices, the Claremo;
Town Hall, later City Hall, was a regional center for entertaimment. Harry
Eaton, a ClAremont druggist, its manager for 32 years, brought stock
companies \fo Claremont.in plays, road compainies for one=night stands,
Local musical, theatrica

musicals, vaudeville, minstrel shows, and movies.
and political events also took place here.

With the aid of the Claremone Opera House Restoration Committee,
restoration of the Hall in regard to the Opera House, unused for 30 years,
is anticipated so that it can again become the center it originally was.
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Claremont Advocate, Dedication Number (June 23, 1897).
The National Eagle (June 26, 1897)
Opera House Programs, Cynthia W. McKee, Claremont, N.H. 03743.

As’ the’ dé:s"iénat"e_a}s'fa't@ ‘t.iaison-Officér for.the/Na-
tional Historic Preservatiéfi‘Act of 1966 {Publir(Law

in the National Register and certify that it has been

eavaluated éé'cbi-dihb; to thd c-iterid and procedures set
. . forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance ofsthis nomxmtxo i
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The architect was Charles A. Rich, of Land and Rich, New York City;
the contractor was a local resident, Hira Béckwith, who~hadstudied—— |
architecture at the Asher Benjamin Scheel-of-Design in nearby Windsor,
Vermont. The choice of a sophisticated design by a New York architect
for its seat of government, and center of community activities, reflected
Claremont's economic, social and political ambitions at the end of the
19th century, and its aspirations to transform itself from a small
industrial city to a regional service and cultural center. These
ambitions are only now becoming attainable, through renewed commitment

" to the community by its citizens--a commitment sparked by recognition

of the quality and potential value of its heritage and natural resources.

The City Hall / Opera House is remarkable not only for the clarity and
coherence of its design, and the excellence of its execution, but also
as the generator, focus and symbol of Claremont's nationally-recognized
center city revitalization program. Receipt of an EDA-LPW-Round One
grant for the Police-Court/Civic Center components of the City Hall
preservation program initi&ted a comprehensive historical survey and
planning process, which culminated in the first Multiple Resource
designation in the National Register of Historic Places. This, in turn,
generated a summer HAER/TPS Rehab Action Project in Claremont, in which
the US Departments of HUD and Energy also participated; a comprehensive
storefront enhancement project; self-help community preservation workshops;
a preservation film production program; and related heritage/recreation/
conservation efforts. ~

Work proposed for HPF assistance will restore the Opera House interior

- finishes and furnishings to their former intricacy and beauty.

Under terms of the EDA project, the interior seating and all movable elements
in the Opera House have been stored to prevent damage, but--by contract--must
be replaced by December 1978. In order to meet this deadline, it was
necessary to begin potential HPF-assisted work on May 1, 1978. Therefore,
approval of preagreement costs (professional fees; research; supervision;
restoration and rehabilitation of existing substrates, wood, plaster and
masonry; restoration of existing paint surfaces; and restoration of

existing light fixtures) is requested, retroactive to May 1, 1978.

In addition, because all of New Hampshire's FY 1978 HPF funds have been
obligated, it is requested that this project be given advance approval

for Fiscal Year 1979 grant-in-aid funds.

It is understood and agreed that no reimbursement requests will be forwarded
to or accepted by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service for this
project until the following fiscal year®*Annual Program Grant has been awarded
and acknowledged, and the standard OMB construction and nonconstruction
applications have been approved by HCRS. Project work will be in accordance
with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Acquistion and Development
Projects.

*  (FY 1979)
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